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The Seattle Times of November 12, 1902 reported a "ROUSING HELD, East Anne
Residents Out in Force, Will Work Energetically for a New Thoroughfare to the Sumnit of
the Hill." From the 150 present, a committee of 15 was appointed to present their plan
to City Council: starting from 8th and Westlake up an "easy grade" on the side' of
the hill to 5th and Newton, the only other feasible route being via Kinnear Park. "These
were the only routes by which a trolley car could reach the top of the hill - except by
counterbalance." The committee, composed of prominent citizens (L. H. Wheeler, J. W.
Clise, Judge A. E. Griffin and others) were eloquent and successful: both car lines were
built and the counterbalance^ too. These car lines established a thoroughfare from the
business center of Seattle to the potential homesites on the hill - and "to all the
northern part of the City."

The Club sought a further improvement of the hill when their committee before the
Park Board in 1906, proposing a scenic route around the brow of the hill; the views from
the proposed route were spectacular - mostly unobstructed by residential development. Mr.
Clise had become a member of the Park Board and was supported by J. M. Frink and George F.
Cotteri!!; John H. McGraw spoke on behalf of the Club. But the Park Board was reluctant;
the proposal was not, part of the new "Olmsted Plan" of Boulevards and Parkways; the pro^
posed route was along standard City streets, all of which were considerably less than the
150' width usually required for boulevards to provide space for landscaping "[trees, etc.)
on either side of the pavement. The Board finally agreed to the proposition, providing
the community would pay for the taking of private property occasioned by the widening of
certain streets for the purpose of establishing proper street grades by filling or ex-
cavating; the City Engineer to be responsible for contracts involved and grade changes to
streets crossing the proposed boulevard; the proposed boulevard to be transferred to the
jurisdiction and control of the Park Board. The Park Board pledged to improve same by
(landscaping) and macadamizing the driveway at the expense of the Park Fund. The com-
munity agreed and Dr, Crichton of the Club and City Council initiated an ordinance to
provide for proper condemnation proceedings. But by 1910 no suit had been initiated, even
though the juried court had approved the condemnation - each parcel apparently being a
separate case. Boulevard plans were prepared jointly by the Board of Public Works and the
Park Board. Legal action and was with counter-suits and differing opinions
over "necessary11^ Ills or cuts and portions of divided roadway. The result was that the
improvement was done in six divisions or sections, as court action cleared property
titles. This patchwork improvement brought its own type of complaints.

The City Engineer was R. H. Thomson,, of Regrade fame5 and his supervisor of this project
was 0, A. Piper, of piomeer family at Carkeek Park; they acted as agents of the Park Board
in this improvement. In many places the work consisted only of roadway paving, the exist-
ing walks remaining; trees being planted in the parking strips. The first contracts
were awarded in 1911 and the final contract completed in 1916 - when it became the on!y
route by which commercial vehicles could reach certain sections of the district. So
the City Council petitioned^ successfully, for use of this boulevard by commercial
vehicles . . . "until such time as adjacent streets are paved." (1917) Based upon com-
plaints of a later date, the various portions of the boulevard were planted with dif-
ferent trees: maple, sycamore, oak, elm, cottonwood, chestnut . . .

The Club's plans for trolley car and boulevard were a success: the residential area
grew and so did the trees! The houses and trees began to block out the view along the
boulevard. The trolley car line proposed an extension along part of the boulevard and
met with vigorous opposition. The trees dropped their leaves, acorns, etc., across lawns
and pavement, their roots invaded sewer lines and caused sidewalks to "heave" because
they too large for the narrow parking strips (like the Board prophesized
in 1906) and besides5 they kept the sunshine off house and yard! Plagued with "growing"
numbers of complaints, the Board adopted a policy that the cost of tree removal (rf_
approved by the Department) would be borne by the adjacent property owner. In 1942 the
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maintenance of the boulevard pavement was transferred to City Engineering and
10 years later the Board, with concurrence of the Planning Commission, requested
the return of the boulevard to "standard" street status: City Council rejected it
upon the report of the City Engineer that the trees were the responsibility of the
"owner" who planted them (a City-wide policy), further, that we were as able to
maintain and finance the work as they - especially when they were "not anxious to
take on any more work of this nature" (including sidewalk repair).

Citizen complaints continue, as to the inter-Department arguments over repairs,
particularly when City budgets are cut back . . . (c. 1950 the City proposed an
LID to improve pavement, sidewalks and sewers but was defeated by a 90% protest
petition.)
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